
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 15 May 2020. 
 01476 406080

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 26 May 2020 at 10.00 am
This meeting will be held by remote conferencing using 

Skype for Business

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Philip 
Knowles, Councillor Charmaine Morgan, Councillor Linda Wootten and Councillor John 
Dawson

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council
Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources

Agenda
Accessing the Meeting
Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link:

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting – 26 May 2020 

If using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app before 
you can enter the meeting; please allow time for this. If you are using a laptop or desktop computer, 
you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser.

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins.  Members of the public should not use the 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/34HJ2DPK
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/34HJ2DPK


Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors who will use it to indicate that they 
would like to speak.

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

1.  Comments from Members of the Public
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion

2.  Membership
The Committee to be notified of any substitute members

3.  Apologies
Apologies for Absence

4.  Disclosure of Interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting

5.  Action Notes of the Meeting Held on 4 February 2020
For confirmation

(Pages 3 - 11)

6.  Updates from Previous Meeting

7.  Financial Impact Report
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance

(Pages 13 - 25)

8.  Work Programme (Verbal Report)

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


Meeting of the
Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Tuesday, 4 February 2020, 10.30 am

Committee Members present

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Phil Dilks

Councillor Philip Knowles
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor John Dawson

Cabinet Members

Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of the Council

Other Members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter

Officers

Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles)
Interim Strategic Director, Growth (Harry Rai)
Strategic Director, Transformation and Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Head of Financial Services (Alison Hall-Wright)
Head of Customer Experience (Nova Roberts)
Assets Manager (Chris Pike)
Scrutiny Officer (Zena West)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

50. Apologies

There were no apologies for absence. 

3

Agenda Item 5



51. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

52. Action notes of the meetings held on 19 November and 27 November 
2019

The action notes of the previous two meetings were noted and agreed as a 
correct record. 

53. Update from previous meeting

The Scrutiny Officer confirmed that the following information requested at the 
meeting held on 19 November 2019 had been circulated to the Committee 
electronically:

 Figures stating the number of prosecutions made regarding fly tipping 
in the current financial year.

 Information outlining how food hygiene ratings were measured.
 Figures for the number of households in bands 4 and 5 of the Housing 

Register and Housing Register figures for 2018 to allow a comparison 
to be made.

54. Finance Update Report - Quarter 3 2019/20

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources introduced his report giving 
an update on the forecast 2019/20 outturn positions for Revenue, Savings and 
Income Generation and Capital. At the last meeting of the Committee the 
quarter 2 forecast overspend position had been reported at £388k; the quarter 
3 figure forecast a positive reduction in the outturn position to £182k. The 
Cabinet Member directed the Committee’s attention to the other areas for 
noting within the report, including the significant variances in the General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account budgets and their corresponding Capital 
Programmes. 

The Committee were asked if they had any questions relating to the report or 
the appended documents.

Members discussed the significant budget variances and referred specifically 
to the General Fund Revenue Account variances relating to the budgeted 
procurement and transformation savings. A number of Members expressed 
concern that it had not been anticipated during the 2019/20 budget setting 
process that the budgeted savings could not be achieved. The Committee 
sought reassurance that the 2020/21 budgeted savings were realistic and 
asked what lessons had been learned. 

The Committee were assured that significant work had been undertaken 
throughout the 2020/21 budget setting process to ensure that targets were 

4



realistic and achievable. The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
stressed the importance of adhering to the final budget, when approved, and 
confirmed that any in-year budget framework amendments would be referred 
to Council or Cabinet as stipulated by the financial thresholds within the 
Financial Regulations recently approved at Council. 

One Member asked if project plans were in place for the budgeted 
procurement and transformation savings and if these were monitored, 
particularly in relation to financial risk. Officers confirmed that both of these 
areas were underpinned by project plans and had reported quarterly progress 
to the Committee, where arising issues with the potential to prevent the 
achievement of these targets had been explained. A risk ratio analysis was 
undertaken during the budget setting process and Officers confirmed that the 
unmet procurement and transformation savings were not material enough to 
affect the overall budget framework. 

The Committee requested further detail regarding the significant variances in 
relation to the transformation and procurement budgeted savings to 
understand why they had not been met. The Director of Finance explained 
that an absence of information regarding existing contracts and the lack of a 
dedicated resource had created challenges to achieving the budgeted savings 
for procurement. In September 2019 a Procurement Officer had been 
appointed with a clear focus on supporting procurement activity across the 
Council. The continuation of this work in the 2020/21 period would support the 
achievement of the budgeted savings. 

The Strategic Director, Transformation and Change gave further information 
on the budgeted transformation savings for the automation project and why 
these had not been met. The work undertaken with Ernst and Young had 
included the Revenues and Benefits, Housing and Planning service areas. 
The programme of work had changed significantly since the work had begun, 
as the way information was received by the Council had changed in some of 
these areas and further service charges had occurred that were not forecast in 
the initial assessment. The project had also started later than initially planned 
because of a prolonged negotiation process. These challenges had caused a 
delay in the achievement of the budgeted savings. 

Although savings had not yet been achieved by the automation programme, 
an indirect saving had been achieved by putting recruitment for posts in these 
areas on hold. One Member expressed concern that achieving savings in this 
way could negatively affect front line services. Another member of the 
Committee asked how the Council was managing change. The Organisational 
Development and Change team had been created to assist the Council in its 
ambition to become more agile and work in different ways. The team had 
received Lean Six Sigma training and agile project management training had 
been facilitated for officers from a number of service areas to enable the 
Council to manage a range of changes. It was hoped that effectively training 
the relevant officers would allow the Council to continue expanding the 

5



automation project after the contract with Ernst and Young had come to an 
end. There was also an ambition to generate further income by marketing the 
Council’s automated processes to other organisations, once fully developed. 

During discussion, Members commented that a significant proportion of some 
budgets were expected to be utilised in quarter 4. It was explained that service 
managers held responsibility for how their agreed budgets were managed, 
including ensuring that profiling was in line with delivery requirements. The 
Chair requested that a review be undertaken to establish how effectively 
budget profiling was being managed in service areas. 

Action Point

 A review to be undertaken to assess the management of budget 
profiling within service areas

 
A Member referred to the significant variance within the General Fund Capital 
Budget in relation to the commercial investment and regeneration scheme and 
asked why the £10m budget had not been fully utilised. It was confirmed that 
£700k of the budget had been allocated in line with the property investment 
policy, but the legacy amount had been put on hold pending the completion of 
the leisure centre business cases. The Committee also sought further 
information regarding the vehicle replacement programme significant 
variance. Officers explained that the procurement of the two food waste 
vehicles had been met by external funding from Lincolnshire County Council. 

Recommendations

 Officers were thanked for their hard work in reducing the variance 
in the forecast position of the budget since the last meeting of the 
Committee. 

 The use of plain English (where possible) is encouraged for future 
finance update reports to enable Councillors and members of the 
public to clearly understand the Council’s budget position.

55. Quarter 3 Performance

The Strategic Director, Transformation and Change introduced the Leader of 
the Council’s report regarding performance reporting for quarter 3 of 2019/20. 
An update was given for the performance dashboard progression; seven 
dashboards had now been produced for key service areas, showing 
performance against targets, trends and benchmarking information, where 
available. Some of the dashboards were automated and others required a 
level of manual input. 

A number of action points were requested to feed into the continued 
development of the performance dashboards moving forward. Members were 
particularly keen to have as much comparable data as possible to give context 

6



to the information provided. It was also requested that the information 
provided be taken further to feedback on the outcomes of the performance 
reporting and any relevant actions that had been implemented at service level. 
The Committee were informed that the Performance Leads were working 
directly with service areas to ensure that any actions required were put into 
place.  

Action Points

 The number of affordable homes built to be included within the 
house build performance dashboard.

 Numerical figures (and written explanations where appropriate) to 
be included alongside percentages to provide increased clarity.

 More legacy data to be included where possible to allow year on 
year comparisons to be made.

 National averages to be included where possible.
 Further categorisation of types of planning applications to be 

included on the planning process performance dashboard.
 Follow-up information to be provided on the actions implemented 

within service areas as a result of the performance dashboard 
reporting.

A concern was raised regarding the amount of time it took the Council to deal 
with land searches. The current timeframe was causing a delay to property 
and land transactions and a Member asked whether this was having an 
impact on economic development and growth because of the time taken to 
provide the information needed to complete a purchase.

Action Point

 The Interim Strategic Director, Growth to provide a response to 
the Committee on the current position and actions put in place to 
improve the time taken to deal with land search enquiries.

Members thanked officers for the work that had been put into the development 
of the new performance reporting dashboards. The Committee asked when 
the information would be available for the public to view. Officers confirmed 
that the dashboards appended to the report were currently available to the 
public as part of the agenda pack; further work would be undertaken before 
live dashboards were shared.

56. ICT Infrastructure Transformation

The Strategic Director, Transformation and Change introduced the report of 
the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations. There had been a 
review undertaken relating to the server and storage infrastructure currently 
supporting all of the Council’s software. A number of weaknesses had been 
identified with regards to the age and reliability of the current provision. 

7



Reference was also made to greyware which had the potential to cause 
additional risks. 

An investment needed to be made to ensure that the ICT infrastructure could 
efficiently support requirements as service needs changed over time. A project 
was currently underway to ensure that the existing ICT infrastructure was 
compliant with standards by the end of the 2019/20 period. The remediation 
works were being focussed on the central infrastructure of the server room to 
make the provision sustainable. Upskilling was also planned for members of 
the IT team to allow them to manage the improved infrastructure when in 
place. 

The Committee were asked if they had any questions arising from the report 
or the appended Remediation Action Plan.

 Members enquired as to the financial implications of the remediation 
works and what the next steps would be. Officers confirmed that the 
project had been funded through the ICT reserve. Once the works had 
been completed, the hardware would be reviewed for replacement on a 
rolling 4 to 5 year programme. Other aspects of the ICT provision would 
also be reviewed with a view to modernising as necessary moving 
forward. 

 One member of the Committee asked if the Council were considering 
using cloud services to update its storage of information. It was 
confirmed that this had been examined but was not currently 
considered to be a cost effective option. 

 Officers were asked for further clarification on the timing of the 
remediation works and if the project was currently working within the 
anticipated timeframes. The works were started six weeks prior and 
each milestone had been reached to date. 

 Members asked whether the staffing levels within the ICT department 
were sufficient to meet demand. It was explained that vacancies were 
being reviewed. There was potential for further positions to be identified 
and recruited to following this review to allow the department to provide 
an efficient ICT service. 

 The Committee asked if the emerging ICT Strategy referenced in the 
report would be linked to the Corporate Strategy. Officers confirmed 
that as the Corporate Strategy underpinned the overall aims of the 
organisation, the ICT Strategy would be developed in line with this. The 
Strategy would be considered by the Committee at a future meeting. 

The Committee noted the positive progress of the ICT infrastructure works 
and thanked Officers for the update on the progress of the project. 

8



Recommendation

 That a broader update on Transformation be considered at a 
future meeting of the Committee, with financial information to be 
included.

57. Asset Management Strategy

The Interim Strategic Director, Growth presented the Leader of the Council’s 
report on the Asset Management Strategy, which linked to the Corporate 
Strategy and set out a clear vision for the Council’s General Fund assets. The 
Committee were reminded that the Strategy was intended to be a high-level 
guidance document, and as such, did not include an inventory of the Council’s 
assets and their associated management plans. 

The Committee were invited to ask any questions arising from the report or 
the ‘Asset Management Strategy 2020’ document. 

 One Member asked how often the assets identified in the asset 
structure table at 3.1 of the Strategy were valued. It was confirmed that 
this was reviewed via an ongoing five year process.

 Officers were asked how decisions were reached regarding the 
disposal of assets and how these decisions were authorised. It was 
explained that any decisions regarding the disposal of assets were 
carefully aligned with the Asset Management Strategy and would 
follow the usual governance processes for decision making, as set out 
in the Council’s Constitution. There was also an estate group with 
neighbouring districts that met on an annual basis to discuss options 
for reducing costs by sharing spaces with other public sector partners, 
as an alternative to disposal.

 The Committee asked where the Asset Management Strategy sat 
hierarchically in relation to the Corporate Strategy and why additional 
strategies were needed. The Corporate Strategy was confirmed as the 
overarching document which identified the Council’s key themes and 
priorities. However, it was noted that this Strategy could not 
incorporate all of the Council’s activities and therefore other strategies 
were needed to give more specific guidance to standardise procedures 
in some areas. Members commented that they would like to see an 
introductory page within strategies to explain how they support the 
Corporate Priorities.

Action Point

 Officers to consider including an explanation detailing how 
strategies support and relate to the Council’s Corporate Strategy 
when reviewing existing and developing new strategies moving 
forward.

9



 One Member commented that the draft Strategy addressed the 
management of assets from a primarily financial viewpoint and wished 
to note that the value of assets to members of the community also 
needed to be considered when making decisions. 

Recommendation

 The Committee concluded that the draft Asset Management 
Strategy and been considered sufficiently and welcomed the 
principle of the Strategy.

58. Member Working Group for Leisure

The Deputy Leader of the Council introduced his item relating to the review of 
the leisure provision across the district. He informed the Committee that visits 
to all of the leisure centres would be carried out and that the input of local 
Councillors would be welcomed when considering the options for the specific 
leisure sites. 

A Member Working Group for Leisure was being formed to help shape and 
develop the overall leisure review process, to allow a small group of Members 
to track progress and feed back to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees as needed. Although the Terms of Reference stated that two 
Members of the Committee would be required, there were four members of 
the Committee who volunteered and the Deputy Leader agreed to amend the 
requirement to allow all four Members to join the Working Group. The 
Committee also suggested that it would be beneficial for a representative from 
the Finance Department be invited to join the group.

Action Point

 Councillors Whittington, Dilks, Morgan and Adams to join the 
Member Working Group for Leisure.

 An officer from the Finance Department to be invited to the 
meetings of the Member Working Group for Leisure to provide 
financial advice as needed.

59. Work programme

The Chair requested that the ‘town centre and car parking review’ item on the 
Work Programme be considered alongside the ‘Grantham Town Centre’ item 
at the April meeting of the Committee. The Scrutiny Officer would consult with 
the Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations regarding work already 
being undertaken in these areas to identify if the Committee could add value 
by considering these items further. 

One Member suggested an item relating to Member initiatives that could raise 
money and how these could be considered outside of the usual governance 

10



process. The Chair asked that the discussion point be defined more clearly 
with the Scrutiny Officer to clarify the potential for this the be considered by 
the Committee. 

60. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

There was no urgent business to discuss.

61. Close of the meeting

The meeting closed at 12:48.

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Committee
26 May 2020

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources

        

Financial Impact Report
This report summarises a key summary of 2019/20 outturn and provides the latest position on 
the 2020/21 Budget Framework 

Report Author

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

 01476 406210 and 07917 237495

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework

All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 12 May 2020

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 14 May 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 15 May 2020

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1) To review the current financial position for 2020/21 and comment on the actions 
being taken as detailed in the report;

2) To agree to continue to monitor the current 2020/21 financial position and 
contribute towards the development of an amended budget framework for 
consideration by Council in September 2020.

13

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The 2019/20 financial year ended on 31 March 2020 and work is underway to finalise the 

year end position and prepare the statutory statement of accounts in accordance with the 
legislative deadlines.  At the time of compiling this report, the outturn is not yet concluded 
but for the latter part of the 2019/20 financial year there was an adverse financial impact 
resulting from the (then) emerging pandemic.  This has been identified to be £48k (car 
parking £39k and markets £9k) for the last 2 weeks of March 2020.

1.2 With the exception of these headings the financial impact on the 2019/20 year has been 
minimal and can be contained within the budget framework.

2020/21 Financial Position
1.3 The budget for 2020/21 was approved by Council on 2 March 2020.  The budget did 

include a number of new investment initiatives, savings and transformation projects that 
totalled approximately £1m.  Due to the current financial situation and the need for the 
Council to re-allocate its focus and resources on responding to the crisis, the ability to 
deliver the budgeted savings will be significantly affected in the current year.  Therefore, it 
will be necessary later in the year (possibly September) for Council to approve an 
amended budget framework and the role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be 
important in developing the revised budget proposals for the current year.  The revised 
budget framework will also reflect the reduction in fees and charges income, Government 
grants received and emerging costs that were not included in the original spending plans. 

1.4 This section of the report sets out the financial impact following the introduction of 
stringent movement restrictions announced by the Prime Minister on 23 March 2020.  This 
situation is likely to continue in the short to medium term as the lifting of the restrictions 
are eased over an (as yet) undefined period.  Therefore, it is important that Members are 
kept fully updated over the coming period which is highly likely to culminate in a 
requirement to present an amended budget framework for members consideration later in 
the year. 

1.5 It is recognised that it is necessary to undertake regular assessment of the impact of the 
situation as there is no clear easing of the current restrictions.  However, there are several 
key areas where the impact can be identified, and modelling can be undertaken to assess 
the financial consequence both immediate and longer term.  The key income areas 
affected are:

Service Area Gross Income 
Annual 
Budget (£)

Actual Loss 
of Income 
per month 
(£)

Forecast 
Impact – 3 
months (£)

Commentary

Arts Centres 1,149,250 95,771 287,313 Assume 
closure for 3-
month period

14



Service Area Gross Income 
Annual 
Budget (£)

Actual Loss 
of Income 
per month 
(£)

Forecast 
Impact – 3 
months (£)

Commentary

Building Control 657,900 30,470 91,410 Assumed 50% 
reduction over 
3-month period.  
(This is the 
partnership 
impact and it is 
anticipated that 
the income 
losses will 
increase over 
the coming 
months)

Car Parking 
fees

1,293,000 107,750 323,250 No charges for 
3 month period.  
To be reviewed 
on 30 June 
2020

Planning and 
Land Charges 

1,370,600 65,891 197,673 Assumed 50% 
reduction over 
3-month period

Markets 252,700 18,953 57,000 Occupancy is 
averaging 10% 
of budgeted 
attendance 

Property 
Commercial 
Income

1,107,850 26,285 78,857 This represents 
one quarter 
deferred 
income

Commercial 
Waste

366,500 13,100 39,300 Assumed 45% 
reduction over 
3-month period

Treasury 
Investment 
Interest

236,000 7,500 22,500 0.5% interest 
received 
compared to 
0.9% budgeted 

Totals 6,433,800 365,720 1,097,303

15



1.6 It can be seen from the table above that there are a number of areas that are now 
extremely volatile due to the current situation and the financial exposure from both a cash 
flow and budget perspective is now apparent.  However, it is anticipated that some of the 
income losses listed above will be offset by reduced expenditure where there are 
associated variable costs. Work is underway to identify these costs and this analysis will 
be presented in the next financial impact report.  

1.7 Income modelling is being undertaken based on 3, 6, 9 and 12 month scenarios and the 
model is updated as changes in the current restrictive measures are announced that may 
have a positive impact.  A summary is shown at Appendix A and shows that the financial 
exposure for the 3 month period could be in excess of £1m. The full year impact could rise 
to £3.5m based on an assumed improving picture for the remaining months (July – March 
2021).  This will be heavily dependent upon the easing of restrictive movements and the 
level of economic recovery.

Cash Flow Modelling
1.8 Cash flow is a key area of focus in the current circumstances.  Appendix B shows in 

greater detail the main cash flow areas from both income and expenditure.  The method to 
cash flow modelling has been agreed County wide with all authorities working 
collaboratively to share approaches and good practice to ensure a consistent methodology 
is adopted.  

1.9 The model shows the actual activity for April when compared to the forecast and the 
predicted forecast for the remaining months.  The main area of concern is the impact that 
the current economic situation is having on cash income levels as this affects the council’s 
ability to meet its contractual obligations in terms of staffing, precept payments and 
suppliers.  It can be seen that for April the total cash inflow for Council Tax and Business 
Rates reduced by £806k, this adverse impact has been offset by the Government 
accelerating grant payments (Section 31 grants).  So in overall terms the cash flow has 
performed strongly in April.  The cash flow model has been stress tested and mitigating 
actions undertaken are:

 Investments balances have been placed on call accounts and Money Market Funds 
that enable quick and easy access to funds.

 The Government has deferred the Business Rates pooling payments for the 3 month 
period (April – June) meaning the Council can make the equivalent payments from July 
onwards in the financial year.

 Creditor payments have significantly reduced as a result of the Capital programmes 
being deferred and so average creditor payments of £5.2m per month are forecast to 
reduce to £3m in the next few months or until the capital programmes are re-
commenced.

1.10 Based on the current profiling the cash flow does not anticipate any difficulties in the short 
term (based on the actual activity of April) and the modelling assumptions for the next 3 
month period.   However, income activity with respect to Council Tax and Business Rates 
will remain a key focus.  Whilst the recovery policy has been suspended for the current 
time, Council staff will continue to actively engage with residents and businesses to 
ensure that payments continue to be made where possible.  More detail is provided in the 
next section of the report.

16



Council Tax and Business Rates
1.11 These funds are key income sources to the Council and as such are being carefully 

monitored to measure the impact of the current situation on collection rates.  

 The Council expected to collect £8.501m of Council Tax income during April but 
received actual income of £8.137m, although 1,814 accounts have requested a 
deferral on their instalments which will have impacted on the collection performance.
Business Rates - due to recent Government announcements with respect of the 
Expanded Retail Relief Scheme there has been an increase in the number of accounts 
that are now eligible for 100% business rates relief (over £17m relief has been awarded 
in respect of the expanded retail discount to 686 accounts).  This has reduced the 
collectable debit from £43.319m to £27.101m which reduces the cash flow significantly.  
In addition, over 50 businesses have requested that their instalments be re-profiled for 
later in the financial year. The Council will be reimbursed for the cost of the scheme 
through the allocation of additional S31 grant.  This grant will be received on a monthly 
basis which will reduce the impact of the business rates pool payments on the cashflow.  
The actual income expected from Business Rates and Council Tax is monitored on a 
weekly basis so any potential reduction in the collection rate can be identified and the 
impact on the cash flow can be analysed.

 During April direct debits have continued and the following is a summary of the amounts 
collected and rejected:

Fund Amount 
Called (£)

Number of 
accounts

Rejected 
(£)

Rejection 
Rate

Expected 
Rejection 
Rate

Council Tax 6,731,675 46,296 71,834 1.07% <1%

Business 
Rates

1,352,514 857 79,387 5.87% 1%

Rents 494,848 2,687 25,141 5.08% 3.4-3.8%

The rejection rate for Business Rates and Rents is higher than would normally be 
experienced, this will continue to be monitored on a monthly basis and the relevant 
action will be taken.  For Businesses, a number took the decision to cancel their direct 
debits in order to support their business cash flow or because they considered 
themselves to be eligible for reliefs that were being announced by Government.

Additional Financial Considerations
1.12 Inevitably there has been a need to incur additional expenditure in response and these are 

being captured in order to ensure grant monies received are used to offset and also to 
assist in information sharing across the local authority family and Government returns.  
The following is a summary of the main areas:

17



Heading Detail Financial Impact

Formation of the 
Community Hub 

Redeployment of staff from 
non essential areas into the 
Community Hub

Cost neutral to date

Furlough of staff 12 officers from the Building 
Control partnership furloughed 
from 28 April 

Overall saving £19.5k per month 
and Authority saving of £5k per 
month

Key 
Expenditure

Purchase of PPE equipment 
for specific essential workers, 
software changes to support 
new grant schemes, 
administration costs 

£48k incurred to date

Changes to 
salaries

Increase in remuneration to 
operatives and increase in 
overtime rates 

Forecast at £35k per month 
depending upon number of 
operatives and hours worked 

Bed and 
Breakfast

Increase in demand and 
response to Directive to 
provide housing for all 
homelessness cases

£15k for one month based on 346 
additional nights 

Leisure Provider 
claim 

Leisure provider has submitted 
a claim for financial losses

At the present time the claim is 
being reviewed and challenged so 
it is not possible to specify the 
financial impact at this time

Adaptation of 
HRA properties

Modifications to specific 
properties in order to 
accommodate more bedsits - 

15 conversions at an estimated 
cost of £37k 

Funding 
1.13 To date there has received two Government funding tranches totalling £1,480,912:

Amount Allocated Proportionate share to 
South Kesteven 

Basis of Allocation

£1.6bn £64,622 Mixture of Adult Social 
Care Relative Needs 
Formula (87%) and 
Settlement Funding 
Assessment (13%)

£1.6bn £1,416,290 Allocation based on a per 
capita basis, and a 65:35 
split between county and 
district authorities

18



This funding is designed to meet the costs of dealing with the current crisis, offsetting some 
of the budget shortfalls being experienced and help support short term cash flow.  However 
it is recognised that further funding will be required as the wider implications and longer term 
impact of the crisis becomes clearer.  At the present time there is no indication that further 
funding will be available although there continues to be an ongoing dialogue with the 
Government utilising established Council networks.
Capital Schemes

1.14 The capital programmes for both General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account have 
been re-profiled to take consideration the current climate with the majority of schemes 
delayed until later in the financial year.  It is not known whether the budgets will be 
accurate given the predicted volatility in the procurement market once the economic 
recovery starts.  Therefore the programmes and the associated funding will require 
reviewing later in the year.  The funding of the programmes are largely internally sourced 
and so in the short term, cash balances are higher than originally envisaged although 
offset by a low interest rate (0.52%).   Going forward consideration will be given to the 
financial modelling and phasing of the large scale projects including St Martins Park 
Stamford, the leisure investment programme, Historic Action Zone, Future High Street 
initiative and the Housing Revenue Account new home building programme.   This will be 
undertaken in the context of the changes to the medium term financial outlook which will 
emerge following the impact of the Government’s Covid-19 Recovery Strategy. 

Government Schemes 
1.15 During April and May there were a number of schemes announced by Government which 

have been administered by the Council with the support of InvestSK.

 Extended Retail Relief Scheme.  The Government has extended the eligibility criteria 
for the 100% business rates retail relief to include other sectors specifically the leisure 
and hospitality sectors.  This is for 2020/21 only and 686 additional businesses in the 
District have benefited from this extension and £17.4m of relief has been awarded.

 Funding has been made available to help small, rural, retail, leisure and hospitality 
businesses with their ongoing business costs in recognition of the disruption caused by 
COVID-19.  The grants are split into two categories: 

 Small Business Grant Fund - £10k

 Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund - £10k and £25k (depending on rateable 
value)

To date £26m has been passed to 2,147 eligible businesses (84% of those classified as 
eligible).
The Government has recently announced an extension to the grant scheme and has 
allocated a further £1.6m to enable the Council to develop a discretionary scheme to 
support those businesses that fall outside the criteria for the original grant scheme.  At 
the time of compiling this report, guidance for the discretionary scheme is awaited.

 Council Tax Hardship Fund – The Council has been allocated £924k to provide 
financial support to working age claimants who are eligible for Council Tax support.  
This will be implemented in the coming weeks and for the 2020/21 Council tax bills and 
will be available for new claimants for the remainder of the financial year.  It is 
anticipated that there will be tenfold increase in claimants for the remainder of the year.  
For context there has been an increase of 68% in contacts to the Benefits team for 

19



April from residents seeking information and support and these have been responded 
to accordingly.

Summary
1.16 The report sets out the main headings of the financial impact of the current situation.  It is 

a changing picture and the Council responses will be modified and adapted as the national 
easing of restrictions become clearer.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 The report requests feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Councillors.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 No other options were considered, a financial update was resueated by Councillors.

4 Preferred Option
4.1 As set out in the recommendations.

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 As set out in the report.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 Feedback from Scrutiny Councillors will be fed back to the next meeting of Cabinet. An 

amended budget framework may be considered at Council in September 2020.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 This report sets out the financial implications of the current position and informs members 

of the current volatility with both income losses and cash flow projections.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect of the 

financial position of the Council expenditure during the course of the year.  This is 
particularly important during the current crisis.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 Not applicable.

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 The associated financial risks and mitigations in place are detailed throughout the 

narrative in the report and form the basis of the modelling that is in place.  This is an 
explicit element of the cash flow modelling.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 Not applicable.

20



12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

12.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact.

13 Other Implications (where significant) 
13.1 The identified implications are referenced in the report.

14 Background Papers
14.1 Council Budget Report:

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=
4

15 Appendices
15.1 Appendix A – Potential of Financial Impact on Budgets

15.2 Appendix B – Cashflow Modelling

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not applicable

Previously Considered by: Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Not applicable

21

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Potential of Economy Impact on Budgets
Assumed Reduction

High Risk Area

20-21
Budget

Realistic
Impact

Assumed
Monthly
Impact Pessimistic

Pessimistic
Monthly
Impact Optimistic

Optimistic
Monthly
Impact

REALISTIC
FOR 3

MONTHS

REALISTIC
IMPACT FOR
MONTHS 4-

12 

REALISTIC
FORECAST

FOR MONTHS
4-12

REALISTIC
FORECAST
2020/21

Arts Centres 1,149,250 100% £95,771 100% £95,771 100% £95,771 287,313 70% £603,356 890,669
Building Control 657,900 50% £27,413 70% £38,378 40% £21,930 82,238 50% £246,713 328,950
Car Parks 1,293,000 100% £107,750 100% £107,750 100% £107,750 323,250 50% £484,875 808,125
Planning and Land Charges 1,370,600 57% £65,104 70% £79,952 30% £34,265 195,311 40% £411,180 606,491
Markets 252,700 90% £18,953 100% £21,058 50% £10,529 56,858 60% £113,715 170,573
Property Commercial Income 1,107,850 28% £25,850 50% £46,160 20% £18,464 77,550 60% £498,533 576,082
Commercail Waste 366,500 45% £13,744 60% £18,325 30% £9,163 41,231 40% £109,950 151,181
Treasury Investment Income 236,000 40% £7,867 60% £11,800 30% £5,900 23,600 70% £123,900 147,500

TOTAL INCOME AT RISK 6,433,800 £362,450 £419,194 £303,772 £1,087,349 £2,592,221 £3,679,570

Assumed Reduction

High Risk Area
20-21

Budget

Realistic
Impact

Monthly
Impact Pessimistic

Pessimistic
Monthly
Impact Optimistic

Optimistic
Monthly
Impact

HRA rents (assuming 50% benefits) 12,278,500 5% £51,160 10% £102,321 2% £20,464

23

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2020/21 Cashflow Statement (£)
Forecast Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
April April May June July August September October November December January February March Total

Income
Council Tax 9,086,264 8,722,326 8,033,535 7,895,472 8,068,050 7,895,472 7,981,761 8,085,308 8,033,535 7,947,245 7,973,132 2,122,717 2,125,593 85,248,084
NNDR DD's 3,670,176 3,228,948 2,461,370 2,595,378 2,286,339 2,420,347 2,376,589 2,387,529 2,316,422 2,412,142 2,089,429 1,206,071 879,712 27,101,504
Rent 1,173,546 1,155,466 1,328,846 1,261,430 1,447,873 1,287,894 1,407,001 1,432,078 1,304,494 1,276,171 1,352,782 1,320,767 1,320,767 15,913,648
Invoices raised to customers 637,717 589,590 207,688 1,114,556 420,773 299,432 710,181 366,478 354,912 218,790 526,853 426,719 426,719 5,710,818
Housing Benefit Overpayments 30,082 24,988 28,820 22,176 18,097 18,384 23,823 24,813 18,369 12,644 22,756 27,762 27,762 275,488
Reimbursement of VAT 400,000 344,953 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 4,800,000
New Homes Bonus 453,000 453,000 453,000 453,000 453,000 1,812,000
Section 31 grant 200,000 2,232,587 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 1,545,455 17,200,000
Subsidy 1,386,000 1,386,421 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 1,386,000 16,632,000
Other 1,734,689 1,746,922 3,481,611

17,036,785 18,138,279 17,126,402 17,967,389 16,025,586 15,252,983 15,830,810 16,080,660 15,359,187 15,198,446 15,749,406 8,435,491 8,112,008 178,175,153

Expenditure
LCC & PCC Precepts, NNDR Pooling Payments 9,346,000 9,346,115 9,346,000 1,190,000 9,346,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 9,216,000 1,060,000 9,216,000 94,800,000
Government Bus. Rates Pooling Payments 1,800,000 58,740 58,738 58,740 1,936,305 1,721,160 1,721,162 2,659,943 2,659,943 2,659,945 2,659,944 2,659,944 2,659,943 23,255,767
Salaries 1,000,000 988,666 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 12,000,000
Benefit payments 885,000 852,154 850,000 850,000 1,650,000 840,000 840,000 810,000 890,000 860,000 800,000 790,000 790,000 10,855,000
PWLB Loan Repayments 3,000,000 3,000,000 6,000,000
Rejected Direct Debits e.g. NNDR 50,000 206,092 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 600,000
Creditors 5,250,000 4,508,571 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,200,000 3,020,000 3,075,000 3,500,000 4,685,000 4,650,000 46,380,000
NNDR/CT refunds 180,000 917,131 135,000 115,000 200,000 115,000 180,000 175,000 100,000 317,000 171,000 175,000 175,000 2,038,000

18,511,000 16,877,469 14,439,738 6,263,740 17,182,305 17,442,160 20,507,162 18,110,943 16,935,943 17,177,945 17,396,944 10,419,944 21,540,943 195,928,767

Net Cashflow 1,474,215 -1,260,810 -2,686,664 -11,703,649 1,156,719 2,189,177 4,676,352 2,030,283 1,576,756 1,979,499 1,647,538 1,984,453 13,428,935 17,753,614
2,735,025

The net cashflow for April was expected to be a net cost of £1.474m but the actual is a credit of £01.261m the main reasons for this are:
The Section 31 grant estimated on NNDR1 is normally paid in 12 instalments but Government paid the total amount in April to assist with cashflow which increased the income receipts
Government have rescheduled their share of the NNDR pooling payments to reduce the pressure on cashflow April - June
There has been a decrease in payments to suppliers of £0.741m
There has been an increase in NNDR and Council Tax refund of £0.737m
There has been a reduction in council tax and NNDR income of £0.806m, this will partly be due to the rescheduling of payments and will be monitored on a daily basis25

A
ppendix B



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes of the Meeting Held on 4 February 2020
	7 Financial Impact Report
	OSCAppendixA
	OSCAppendixBCashflow


